ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 23, 2017
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator David W/ son

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Denni s Egan

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 34

"An Act relating to the inplenmentation of the federal REAL ID
Act of 2005; and relating to issuance of identification cards
and driver's licenses; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

PRESENTATI ON: BRI DA NG THE FI SCAL GAP - MEANI NGFUL REDUCTI ONS &
LEVERAG NG SAVI NGS BY SENATCR DUNLEAVY

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 34

SHORT TITLE: DRIVER S LI CENSE & | D CARDS & REAL | D ACT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 23/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 17 (S) STA, FIN
02/ 23/ 17 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SHELDON FI SHER, Comm ssi oner
Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 23, 2017



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB 34.

LESLI E RI DLE, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regardi ng SB 34.

MARLA THOVPSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regardi ng SB 34.

JI M HARPER, Vice President

Conpetitive Enterprise Institute

Washi ngton D. C

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 34.

DANI EL GEORGE, Staff

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Presented Chair Dunleavy's fiscal plan,
"Bridging the Fiscal Gap."

ALEXI PAI NTER, Fiscal Analyst

Al aska Division of Legislative Finance

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided analysis of the proposed fiscal
pl ans.

ROB CARPENTER, Fiscal Anal yst

Al aska Division of Legislative Finance

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided analysis of the proposed fiscal
pl ans.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:31:33 PM

CHAIR M KE DUNLEAVY called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 23, 2017



order were Senators WIson, G essel, Coghill, Egan,
Dunl eavy.

and Chair

SB 34-DRIVER S LI CENSE & | D CARDS & REAL | D ACT

3:32: 08 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consi deration of SB 34.

3:32:18 PM

SHELDON Fl SHER, Comm ssi oner, Al aska Depar t ment of

Adm ni stration, Juneau, Al aska, provided an overview of SB 34 as

foll ows:

Currently there's legislation within the state

t hat

prohi bits the departnent from pursuing any activity to

conply with the federal REAL ID Act; this

is in

conpliance with a federal law is what we are trying to
offer here or at least <conpliance wth federa
requirenents to get access to certain mlitary bases

or to be able to fly.

We have received waivers of the federal REAL 1D
requi renents, those waivers will expire in June and at
that point we are currently being infornmed by DHS that
those who do not have REAL ID conpliant |icenses, if

the state is not pursuing conpliance, wll have to
seek alternative ID to be able to get on bases and
that mght be a passport of theirs and we wll go
through a list of other IDs, then in January of 2018,
that sane rule will apply to flights, so individuals
wi Il have to have those alternative |Ds.

This act, our proposal is optional, it does not

require that the state issue a REAL ID conpliant
license, it gives the individual the option of whether
they would like a conpliant REAL ID and it charges a
fee which will cover the cost of issuing that |icense,
so to sone extent the individual wll be bearing the

cost associated with this.

3:34: 46 PM
COWMWM SSI ONER FI SHER conmmenced his presentation and
slide 2, "Federal REAL ID Act" as foll ows:

ref erenced

 REAL ID covers all 50 states, 5 territories and Washi ngton,

D. C

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 23, 2017



e Establishes mninmum requirenments for secure issuance and
production of state-issued driver |licenses and | Ds:

* Requires states to verify a person’s identity & |awful
st at us.

* Requires special card design features Ilike digital
phot o, signature, and uni que card nunber.

* Requires safeguards for issuance and production of
licenses; i.e. clearly marking tenporary, limted, or
ot herwi se non-conpliant |icenses as “Not for Federal
I dentification.”

* Twenty-six states currently offer REAL I D conpliant cards.

* Nineteen states including Al aska have extensions allow ng
conti nued issuance and production of non-conpliant cards.

* Five states that are non-conpliant — WA, M\, MO, Mg, Mr:

= Mnnesota and Wishington do have Enhanced IDs (chip
cards) which are approved for REAL ID Conpliant and
TSA.

= Washington and M nnesota have current bills in 2017
for conpliance.

3:36: 01 PM
COW SS|I ONER FI SHER referenced slide 3, "SB 34 Driver's License,
State I Ds, and REAL | D ACT" as foll ows:

« \What SB 34 Does:

» Allows DW to offer Alaskans a choice between a REAL
ID conpliant driver’s license or ID, or a “standard”
nonconpliant license or |ID

= Gves DW the authority and funding to upgrade
systens, equipnent and processes for REAL ID/ DL card
producti on.

= Allows DW to charge an additional $5 fee for REAL ID
licenses and IDs to cover the increased cost of
producti on.

« Wiy SB 34 is Needed:

= AS 44.99.040 (a)(2) prohibits DW from spending state
funds to conply with REAL I D Act.

= Wthout conpliant ID, Alaskans will need another form
of federal ID for TSA security screenings or to gain
access to mlitary bases and secure-entrance federal
bui | di ngs.

= REAL ID Act was designed to decrease fraud and ensure
that states are checking the validity of docunents
presented with applications.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 23, 2017



He noted that it costs $1.5 mllion to comply with REAL ID and
the $5 fee will not recover that $1.5 mllion; however, a $10
woul d recover the $1.5 mllion initial capital cost in about 5
years. |If one of the concerns is the cost of funding that, then
there is an option to shift that cost to the participant.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY stated that he believed there should always be
concern about additional cost.

COWMWM SSI ONER FI SHER agreed with Chair Dunleavy. He reiterated
that the bill is necessary because of current |egislation that
prevents the Department of Adm nistration from pursuing a REAL
ID conpliant |icense or spending funds to conply with REAL ID
whi ch the departnment is prohibited to do.

3:37:46 PM

He referenced slide 7, a flowhart about the Real |D process. He
pointed out that the process is essentially the sane as the
state's current ID process with the foll ow ng exceptions:

» Take photo to store with application in Al aska.

* Electronic Verification of Vit al Event s ( EVVE)
El ectronically verify date of birth with SSA and the
Nati onal Association of r Public Health Statistics and
| nformati on Systens (NAPHSIS).

e Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlenments (SAVE)
El ectronically verify docunent held by DHS.

e US Passport Verification Service (USPVS). Electronically
verify US Passport docunment data agai nst DHS.

* New pernanent license with "Real |ID Star" printed by
Central |ssuance Facility and mailed to applicant.

He addressed slide 8 regarding three different validation steps
whi ch depend on which information is presented by the applicant.
He noted that EVVE verifies that a person's state issued a U S
birth certificate that matches the record of the issuing state.
He specified that a query is sent to a database that is
mai ntained by the National Association for Public Health. He
pointed out that the National Association for Public Health is
not a governnent agency, but a nonprofit organization.

3:40: 17 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked about information collection and referenced
a coment Conm ssioner Fisher's nmade earlier that when the
information is collected, "The information stays with us,"” but

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 23, 2017



noted his previous statenment that information is contained in a
nongover nnent al agency.

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that the reference he nade earlier
was specific to a photo taken by the state that it remains in an
Al askan dat abase and is not shared or transmtted anywhere el se.
He specified that the step he previously noted is a query sent
to confirmdata fromthe National Association for Public Health.
He reiterated that the National Association for Public Health is
not a governnent agency, but rather a public health organi zation
that has created a database of birth certificate records and
validating birth certificates wth the organization is a
standard practi ce.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the information that is contained in
REAL ID is shared with the very federal governnent and that is
conpelling Alaska to do the REAL | D process.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered no. He specified that the essence
of REAL IDis the state validating the information that has been
provi ded. He detailed that the EVVE system noted earlier is one
exanple, but there are two nore options depending on what
information is presented by the applicant. He said the first
exanple is based upon a birth certificate being presented, the
second one is if the person is an immgrant with a visa that is
val i dated by di pping into another database mai ntained by DHS. He
explained that the third scenario is if a passport is presented
and the passport is validated by dipping into the database that
is al so mai ntai ned by DHS.

3:42: 22 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked what the departnment is sharing with DHS s
dat abase.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ained that the departnent verifies with
DHS that a passport is valid.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the departnent nust share data wth
DHS' s dat abase.

COW SS|I ONER FI SHER answer ed correct.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if that data is being shared with DHS s
dat abase.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 23, 2017



COM SSIONER FISHER replied yes. He explained that t he
departnment's "dip" has a certain anount of i nformation
associated with it.

SENATOR WLSON addressed the initial photo used in conparison
for state purposes and asked how the photo w il be used. He
inquired if the photo will only be used for state purposes. He
asked if destroying the photo after the conparison has been
consi der ed.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that the departnment has no intention
of doing anything other than storing the photo wthin the
Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW). He said there is a potenti al
for a future discussion if the Legislature or soneone el se deens
there is some other worthy use of the photo. He noted that there
may be a requirenent that the DW photo is maintained.

3:44:10 PM

LESLIE RIDLE, Deputy  Conm ssi oner, Al aska  Depart nent of
Adm ni stration, Juneau, Alaska, explained that the departnent
saves the photo because |aw enforcenent has the authority to
access the database. She added that the photo is also saved in
case a person loses all fornms of identification and the photo
can be used for verification purposes.

SENATOR WLSON asked if a separate database is being created
outside of the current database for driver's |icense photos.

M5. RIDLE answered no, she explained that the photo would be in
DW' s dat abase.

SENATOR W LSON asked that the photo-to-ID process be explained
in detail and to verify that the photo stays in the state.

3:46: 05 PM

MARLA THOWMPSON, Director, Division of Mdtor Vehicles, Al aska
Department of Adnministration, Anchorage, Al aska, explained that
an individual's photo and information is stored in DW's
dat abase in Al aska. She detailed that the photo and information
is presented to Gemalto, a conmpany located in Indiana that
prints and nmails the driver's license to individuals.

3:50: 08 PM

SENATOR WLSON confirnmed that Al askans' bionetric data is sent
to Gemalto, an international conpany that does business in 80
different countries. He asked if Al askans are being notified
that their bionetric data is being sent out of state during the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 23, 2017



driver's license process. He assuned that the state's REAL ID
process will be the sanme as the driver's |icense process.

M5. THOWSON explained that all of the information checking
occurs in Alaska prior to sending to Gemalto for printing.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER concurred with Ms. Thonpson.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opined that sone people would find it hard to
believe that data would never be shared or |eaked considering
reports in newspapers that database breaches are occurring.

3:52: 07 PM
COW SSI ONER FI SHER referenced slide 4, "Wat WIIl Change" as
fol | ows:

e Alaska DW wll take a photo at tinme of application and
store that image in Al aska.

- DW wll validate birth certificates or passports if
provi ded by applicant.

 REAL ID/driver's license (DL) cards wi Il have unique design
or color indicator to clearly distinguish from nonconpliant
cards.

* Nonconpl i ant cards Wil state “ Not for Feder al

| dentification.”
DL &1 Ds will now be valid for 8 years instead of 5 years.

He explained that the additional cost for the REAL |ID conpliant
license is justified from a consuner's perspective based on the
additional years that the IDis valid.

He referenced slide 5, "Wat Wn't Change" as foll ows:

e DW wll still require the primary docunent, secondary
docunent, and proof of Al aska residency for conpliant and
nonconpl i ant cards.

 DW will continue to background check enpl oyees.

e DW wll continue to use a secure facility to produce
conpliant and nonconpliant cards.

3:52:56 PM
He referenced slide 6, "Wiat Do People Need to Bring to GCet
Al aska | D DL" as follows:

e Primary Docunent:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 23, 2017



An original or certified copy of a US  birth
certificate.

Passport or passport card issued by the United States
or US. Territory.

A foreign passport with appropriate inmmgration status
forms issued by DHS, U S. Citizenship and Inmgration
Servi ce.

A resident alien, tenporary resident alien, or
enpl oynment work authorization docunment issued by DHS,
U.S. CGtizenship and I nmgration Service.

US mlitary identification for active duty, retiree,
or reservist.

Certificate of Citizenship, Naturalization, or Birth
Abr oad.

« Secondary Docunent:

Al Primary Docunents.

Li cense from anot her state or Al aska.
Bureau of Indian Affairs card permt.
Enpl oyee photo I D or School 1D,
Heal t h i nsurance card.

Medi cal records.

MIlitary dependent identification.
Pilot's license.

Marri age License.

Vot er Regi stration Card.
Transportation Worker Identification Credential (TWOQ)
Car d.

« Proof of Principal Residence:

Uility bill.

Al aska voter registration card.

Al aska title and/or registration (lssued at |east 30
days prior to application).

Paycheck St ub.

Medi cal Assi stance card.

Publ i c Assi stance card.

Cancel ed check or bank statenent.

Mort gage or rental docunents.

Letter from enpl oyer on | etterhead verifying
applicant’s residence address.

« Proof of Social Security Nunber:

Social Security nunmber or letter from the Social
Security Ofice stating that the applicant is not
eligible for a Social Security nunber.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 23, 2017



= Commercial drivers nmust bring their actual Social
Security card.

3:53: 27 PM
COW SS| ONER FI SHER referenced slide 9, "Tineline" as foll ows:

e January 2017 - Governor introduced bill to allow DW to
produce both conpliant REAL | D/ DLs and nonconpliant DLs.

* June 6, 2017 — Al aska’s waiver from DHS ends.

e June 7, 2017 - Unless Alaska is granted an additional
wai ver, approved federal ID wll be required to access
mlitary bases and federal facilities.

e January 22, 2018 —REAL ID conpliant ID/ DLs or other federa
| D Wil | be required at Transportation Security
Adm nistration (TSA) security check points, unless Al aska
has passed | egislation and is working toward conpli ance.

e Cctober 1, 2020 — REAL ID conpliant ID/ DLs or other federa

ID will be required at TSA security check points. No
addi ti onal HSA waivers will be granted.
 |If Real ID bill passes this session:

= Decenber 2017-BIW conpl etes Al aska License and Vehicle
| nformati on Network (ALVIN) upgrade and begins REAL ID
upgr ades.

= Md-2018 — first REAL ID cards avail able to Al askans.

3:55:11 PM
He referenced slide 10, "REAL ID - Accessing Mlitary Bases, Wo
W1l Be Mst Inpacted If Waiver Expires" as foll ows:

St at e Enpl oyees:
= DWA
= DHSS,
= State Troopers,
= DOLWD — OSHA i nspectors.
G vilians:
= Movi ng conpani es,
= Facility mai ntenance conpani es,
» Retailers
= Construction workers,
= Visitors.
Anchor age School District:
= Four school s.
Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District:
= Four school s.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 23, 2017



He referenced slide 11, "REAL ID - Possible Alternative
Document s" as fol | ows:

e Prior to the waiver granted in Cctober 2016, Al aska
mlitary installations were poised to require federal ID to
enter a mlitary base.

e Current list of IDs acceptable for access to Joint Base
El mendor f - R chardson (JBER):

= United States passports/United States passport cards.

= Permanent Resident card/Alien Registration Receipt
Card (Form1-766).

= Foreign passports with a tenporary (I-551) stanp.

= An enploynent authorization docunent that contains a
phot ograph (Form | -766).

= Current/valid driver 's license or identification card
issued by a state or outlying possession of the U S.
which follows the REAL | D Act of 2005.

= |dentification card issued by federal, state, or |ocal
government agencies that are REAL ID act conpliant.
(M nnesota and Washington identification card holders
can have access to federal installations if their
driver licenses bear a small red, white, and blue U S
flag l ogo on the front.)

= VA health identification card issued by the US.
Depart ment of Veterans Affairs.

= Merchant Mariner card issued by DHS/ U. S. Coast Guard.

* TSA has not yet identified which forns of federal ID they
will accept in Alaska in lieu of REAL |DDLs, when
enf orcenent conmences in 2018.

SENATOR W LSON asked Comm ssioner Fisher to explain the waiver
process, how waivers are granted and what Al aska would need to
do to receive an additional waiver.

3:57.:08 PM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that Al aska has asked for waivers
from DHS in the past; however, Alaska was notified in January
that a final waiver would be granted until June to see if the
state passes its REAL ID legislation. He noted that DHS said
that an additional waiver should not be expected if the
| egi sl ati on does not pass.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that wunder the proposed program a person

does need to get a REAL ID if they do not want to. He asked if
all that needs to be done is repeal the 2008 |law. He believed

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 23, 2017



that a law was passed in Alaska that said the state would not
dedi cate resources to assisting with the REAL I D concept.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that he thought Chair Dunleavy was
right. He added that the legislation also authorizes for the
coll ection of another $5 fee.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if Al askans who do not want to get the REAL
IDw Il be issued a regular driver's |license.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answer ed yes.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that Conm ssioner Fisher provided a
list of different alternative docunents that people could get if
they so choose. He noted that during Conm ssioner Fisher's
presentation that at the bottomof a slide it says, "TSA has yet
to identify what if any additional documents they will require.”
He asked if the TSA statenent is correct.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered true. He said it would seem | ogica
that TSA would accept passports and that sort of information,
and sonme others they may not.

4:00: 04 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if is possible that TSA may change what
t hey accept for identification.

COWM SSI ONER  FI SHER answered that the 1list may change. He
asserted that the REAL ID conpliant license will be accepted,
but the alternatives may be a shorter |ist.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the idea is from the federal governnent
and not fromthe state of Al aska.

COW SS|I ONER FI SHER answer ed correct.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the federal governnent wants the state
to their work for them

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ained that the federal government has
said that they will accept a REAL ID conpliant license to enter
a federal facility.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY reiterated that the federal governnent is having
the state do the work for them He said there is nothing
preventing the federal government from setting up a federal
of fice.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 23, 2017



COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER concurred and renmarked that there is nothing
preventing the federal governnent from creating their own |ID,
but noted that passports are a version of the federal governnent
ID. He stated that the reason why he is advocating for the REAL
IDis its user-friendly approach where people have an option to
sinply pay an extra $5 to be conpliant, plus the license wl]l
have three nore years of validity to it.

4:02:18 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opined that there is nothing preventing the
federal governnent from comng up with a new law or a new
regul ati on that sonehow cracks open the new dat abases.

COMM SSI ONER FI SHER specified that the databases the departnent
is dipping into already exist and no new database are being
created through the REAL I D process.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY remarked that the safe approach is to assune that
data is going to be shared in the process rather than saying
that data is not going to be or will not be shared.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER noted that checking on someone's passport
does not <create a new database. He explained that all the
process does is confirma valid passport.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY replied that Conmm ssioner Fisher is right. He
specified that once a person provides data, the assunption nust
be that the information is going to be shared.

COMM SSI ONER FI SHER reiterated that the data al ready exists.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY restated that the chances of a person's data
being shared in the REAL ID process is pretty good. He asked
Comm ssioner Fisher if his prior assunption is correct.

COM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that he does not understand Chair
Dunl eavy's question. He repeated that the REAL ID process is a
validation of information that already exists. He remarked that
he is not certain what new data would be stored because the
departnment is validating data that exists in the federal
governnent's dat abase.

4:04:50 PM

M5. RIDLE confirmed that no new database is being created with
REAL ID and the information has already conme into DW' s
dat abase.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 23, 2017



SENATOR COCGHI LL noted that he appreciated the part where REAL ID
is voluntary. He concurred with Chair Dunleavy's concerns that
the state would be doing the federal governnent's job. He opined
that the federal governnent gives and takes away where one day
the federal governnment mght change its mnd and require a
national ID card.

SENATOR COGHILL noted that the legislation put into place that
Chair Dunl eavy referenced regarding national |ID was debated over
whether the state's driver's license was for driving or for
identification purposes. He added that the Legislature stressed
in the legislation that the state would not assist with a
national |D.

He pointed out that comrerce was a point nmade for REAL ID and
noted that Fairbanks has two mlitary bases and its inpact is
going to be a big deal. He disclosed that a person can get a
yearlong access to a mlitary base if +they do their own
checki ng.

He summarized that he struggles with a national |ID, especially
wi th sovereign states and conmented as foll ows:

| think we are supposed to be a free people and right
now the fear of governnent is too high. Wen you get
any reluctance fromne it's going to be based on that
ki nd of basic phil osophy.

4:08:17 PM

SENATOR Q3 ESSEL rhetorically asked t he commttee  what
information the federal governnent does not already have about
us. She pointed out that she nust do a crimnal background
check, submt tax returns, obtain a concealed-carry permt, and
use a driver's license. She said while she shares the concerns
voiced in the commttee that the federal government is going to
control our novenent, she remarked that she did not know if the
federal governnment has the data already. She stated that she is
not 100-percent sure the legislation is worse than what the
federal government already has.

SENATOR COGHILL replied that the concern is not that the federal
government has the information, but that people fear that the

federal governnment will wuse the information on an individual's
ability to nove. He opined that that the state struggles wth
driver's licenses used for identification rather than for

driving. He stated that he appreciates the voluntary aspect

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 23, 2017



because it allows conmerce to happen. He asserted that he does
not know that he is willing at this point to capitulate with the
federal governnent.

SENATOR W LSON noted that 19 states do not have REAL ID. He
opined that with 19 states he does not believe airports in those
states are going to shut down within 3 years. He admtted that
there are other options of acquiring federal identification and
noted that sonme truck-driver associations stated that they are
not effected getting on mlitary bases because the drivers have
their identification cards. He added that other federal 1Ds
i nclude passport <cards and passports. He renarked that the
federal governnent is not paying Alaska to inplenment the REAL ID
program and the state will have to bear the $1.5 mllion to
i npl enent the program He opined that using the enhanced "chip
cards”" would cost |less than a whole other driver's license. He
summari zed that the REAL ID programis an additional requirenent
without a real benefit for the state. He added that he is not
okay with the state storing on a new |ID database that can be
used for other purposes deened by new regul ati ons.

4:12:10 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY stated that Conmi ssioner Fisher is not causing
the issue. He said he knows Comm ssioner Fisher believes REAL |ID
is going to facilitate sone good things for Al aska. He renarked
that the whole data issue has becone insidious and pervasive in
everyday life. He agreed with Senator G essel that the federa

government has everyone's data, but asserted that he is not yet
willing to rollover and is going to make them work a little
harder to get the data. He reiterated that the federa

government has outlets on bases to do the work, but decided to
coercively have the state help put a programin place by making
it hard for Alaskans to get on bases or fly if the state did not
want to hel p.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER set forth that SB 34 is a policy decision
that the Legislature needs to make. He said his goal is to
provide the necessary information to nake an infornmed and
appropriate decision. He opined that the federal governnent does
have a program and that is passports and passport IDs. He said
an option to present Alaskans is that the Legislature is not
going to pass REAL ID and citizens will have to get a passport
or passport card, an option that will inpose costs and burdens;
then the question is what is the benefit associated with that
and he opined that consideration not to pass REAL |ID becones
nore of a statenent then any real change. He stated that he
agreed with Senator Gessel that the information is there and

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 23, 2017



really all the departnent is doing is validating its existence
and validity of documents that are presented.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the commttee wll hear from
invited testinony.

4:15: 24 PM

JIM HARPER, Vice President, Conpetitive Enterprise Institute,
Washington D.C., testified in opposition of SB 34. He disclosed
that he has analyzed REAL ID since the |aw was passed because
the policy inposes so heavily on state governnents to carry out
f eder al mandates regarding identification. He agreed wth
Comm ssioner Fisher that REAL ID is a policy question and
enphasi zed that the nost inportant policy is security.

He set forth that based on his study of how a national |D works
and how REAL I D works, there is essentially no national security
benefit frominplenenting REAL ID. He noted that REAL I D was not
a 9/11 Comm ssion reconmendation. He opined that not only does
REAL ID not bring citizens nore national security, but the
policy creates new security and privacy problens. He said
creating the REAL |D database creates hacking risks and fraud
risks.

He disclosed that REAL ID requires states to share information
fromtheir databases nationwi de. He opined that nore |ID scanning

will occur when cards are uniform across the country. He set
forth that REAL ID is a national ID that wundermnes state
sovereignty. He remarked that conpliant states wll give back

power that they will not get back.

He sunmmarized that REAL ID will wultimtely give the federal
governnment control over an individual's identification, the tool
used by everyone to access all the benefits of society.

4:26: 30 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY held SB 34 in comm ttee.

4:26:56 PM
At ease.

PRESENTATI ON: BRI DA NG THE FI SCAL GAP - MEANI NGFUL REDUCTI ONS &
LEVERAG NG SAVI NGS BY SENATOR DUNLEAVY

4:29: 43 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the comrittee back to order. He announced
that his office will present a fiscal approach that is in

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 23, 2017



response to the state's fiscal issue. He disclosed that his
of fice has worked on its fiscal approach for a couple of nonths
both with the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation, Legislative
Fi nance Division, and econom sts that work with the Institute of
Soci al and Econom c Research (I SER)

CHAI R DUNLEAVY set forth that his fiscal plan calls on Al aska's
st akehol ders, legislature and governor to cone up with a way to
navigate the state out of its fiscal issue. He said the state's
fiscal issue is due to the dramatic drop in oil revenues, oi
production, and increased spending since 2006 that has led to a
$2.6 billion to $3.0 billion fiscal gap.

He noted that the Legislature has worked on reducing spending
over the last few years, nmainly in the capital budget area, and
work continues to drive down the budget to get as close as
possible to the revenues used to pay for the governnent.

He said the Senate Mjority has put together an approach and
noted that his plan is very simlar. He detailed that the Senate
Majority is looking at reductions of about $750 mllion and his
plan calls for reductions of about $1.1 billion over 4 years.

He added that his office's plan does the following to address
the state's fiscal gap:

» Use savings from the Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR)
and other endowed funds to help bridge the gap to a
sust ai nabl e budget.

e Uses the 50-50 approach initially advocated by forner
governor Jay Hamond where the Permanent Fund Dividend
(PFD) is calculated and distributed, and the renmining 50
percent in the Permanent Fund Earnings Reserve could be
used in a manner that the governnment saw fit; for exanple,
inflation proofing the permanent fund.

He said people asked for a bill, but his plan does not |end
itself well to a bill because there are different conmponents. He
noted that his plan is a nmulti-year approach that addresses the
continuously opined path that additional revenue and eventually
taxes would be needed to get the state through its fiscal issue.
He disclosed that further mathematical analysis has led his
office to believe that additional revenue is not necessarily an
absol ute and rather is a choice.

He conceded that steep reductions will be politically difficult.
He explained that his office has identified ways to reduce the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 23, 2017



budget through program elimnation and spending reductions. He
poi nted out that constituency groups attached to sone prograns
will advocate for their retention. He remarked that grow ng
government by creating nore prograns is a l|lot easier than
reducing it.

4:33.48 PM

DANI EL CGEORCGE, Staff, Senat or Dunl eavy, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, explained that Chair Dunleavy's
of fice has an approach rather than a bill before the committee.

He noted that the Legislative Finance Division is on hand to
present their nodeling on Chair Dunleavy's approach as it
relates side-by-side to bills that have been presented: SB 21,
SB 26, and HB 115.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY detailed that the bills referenced by M. GCeorge
deal with the permanent fund and an incone tax. He reiterated
that his approach is a conplete nulti-conponent and multi-year
plan to address other aspects that are not seen in the bills
referenced by M. George.

MR, CGEORGE set forth that the intent of the hearing is to
introduce a sensible approach that can be used to address the
state's current fiscal crisis. He pointed out that although the
plan's approach is not a new concept, the concept has not been
openly debated in committees.

He stated that the plan's approach is presented in a sinple
manner. He disclosed that Chair Dunleavy's plan has the backing
of the Legislative Finance Division and noted that their
nmodeling will be shared with the conmttee. He detailed that
Chair Dunleavy's plan has a ten-year outlook that has been
devel oped in conjunction with the Legislative Finance Division
and made avail able to the public since the beginning of session.
He asserted that the plan is mechanically and mathematically
sound.

4:35:52 PM

He conceded that wth all nodeling and projections, one's
assunptions are inportant. He detailed the plan's assunptions as
fol |l ows:

e Projections are all presented in a flat-budget scenario and
are consi stent across all presentations.

e Covernor's $125 mllion supplenental budget is not
addr essed.

» FY2018 budget anendnents are not addressed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 23, 2017



e Assunes paynent in full of last year's dividend.
e Inflation proofing is not addressed.

* Future obl i gati ons t hat i nvol ve unf unded lTability
obligations or the pursuit of a large project |like a gas-
[ine are not addressed.

MR. CGECRCE noted that inflation proofing addressed in SB 21 and
SB 26 woul d both repeal the inflation-proofing statute.

4:36:49 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY sunmarized conponents of his fiscal plan as
fol | ows:

e Looks at a 5 to 10-year horizon.

 Full payout of the dividend to address the Alaska's
recession by putting $700 million into the hands of
Al askans.

e Contenplates Jay Hamond's 50-50 approach that currently
exists in the constitution and statute.

e Gradual $1.1 billion budget reduction over 4 years so that
Al aska's econony is not shocked.

e State's savings accounts will grow wi thout taxes.

e SJIR 2 has been introduced to revise the current
appropriation limt via constitutional anmendnment to ranp

down governnent's size and grow h.

e Judicious use of the state's savings in the CBR and
endowrent s.

« Biennial budget for two-legislative sessions that allows
for better budget pl anning.

4:39: 21 PM

MR. GEORGE set forth that one key aspect of the 50-50 usage of
the permanent fund's earnings reserve is that it helps to
i medi ately address the state's fiscal. He explained that the
pl an focuses on balancing the budget within the next 5 years
with a sustainable budget in 10 years. He added that the plan's
phi |l osophy of a smaller governnent is at its heart and attenpts
to address the gap from both sides.

He noted a correction in the plan's outline and pointed out that
Chair Dunleavy's plan draws $1.54 billion versus the governor's
$2.56 billion. He pointed out that the governor's plan includes
$700 mllion for dividends which equates to a draw that is 20
percent higher than the 50-50 plan because the 50-50 plan
divides half for governnent and half for dividends.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 23, 2017



He noted that the 50-50 plan's 5 and 10-year horizons do not
require any inposition of new taxes. He added that the 50-50
pl an's nodeling does not contenplate any new taxes and assunes
the governor's notor-fuel tax does not pass wth its revenue
renoved

4:41: 01 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY explained that there are no assunptions on any
addi tional revenue comng fromthe new finds on the North Sl ope

from ConocoPhillips, Caelus, Arnstrong, and any others that may
come. He enphasized that nodeling is a conservative approach
where new finds that come on line will be added revenue that

Al aska can put back into savings.

MR. CGECRCE noted that one of the key factors in each of the
fiscal plans has been the highly touted dividend levels to
Al askans. He disclosed that the dividend under Chair Dunleavy's
pl an woul d be approximately $2,200 in the next fiscal year and
would grow to $2,800 in 6 years. He enphasized that the dividend
under Chair Dunl eavy's plan remains whol e and grows.

He addressed a 10-year outlook for the 50-50 plan that uses the
Al aska Departnment of Revenue's Revenue Sources Book nunbers. He
added that the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation provided data
that was given to the Legislative Finance Division to create the
plan's 10-year spreadsheets. He explained that a draw will be
required to balance the budget for FY2018, FY2019 and FY2020
under the 50-50 concept. He pointed out that $368 mllion
surplus is forecasted for FY2021 under the 50-50 plan and noted
that any surpluses nodeled under the 50-50 plan are deposited
into the CBR

4:43: 27 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that by year-four there would be a
surplus if budget reductions are nmade. He conceded that the
proposed budget reductions are steep, but enphasized that
surpluses will accunul ate wi thout taxes.

MR. CGECRCE reiterated that the 50-50 plan's nodeling is a flat-
budget scenario with increasing surpluses going out 10 years. He
noted that the plan's nodeling does not account for inflation

He explained that the 50-50 plan's flat-budget scenario is done
to provide an appl es-to-appl es conparison with the other plans.

He addressed the 50-50 plan's revenue and detailed that federa
revenue is projected flat because what the federal governnent is

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 23, 2017



going to do is not known. He explained that other revenue and
"designated” general funds (DGF) also renmamins flat due to
mani pul ati on where nore tuition or fees can be collected. He
pointed out that the notor fuel's tax increase was backed out
and appears in the projection as an increase in "unrestricted"
general funds (UGF). He detailed that UGF revenue grows
according to the Al aska Department of Revenue's Revenue Sources
Book nunbers. He disclosed that an assunption is nmade that all
progranms that are 100-percent federal revenue will continue only
if 100 percent of that revenue continues to be received and
there is no augnentation from the state. He added that the
projection for FY2027 matches FY2026 because data is not
avai l abl e in the Revenue Sources Book for FY 2027.

4:45: 25 PM

MR. CEORCE detailed that the next slide in his presentation
lists the state's major savings accounts. He detailed that the
CBR has a bal ance noted in the nodeling at $4.38 billion for the
end of FY2017 with a withdrawal of $270.5 million in FY2018. He
di scl osed that the 50-50 plan also includes using the remaining
bal ance in the Statutory Budget Reserve (SBR) of $288 nillion
for FY2018. He noted that the Al aska Hi gher Education |nvestnent
Fund is available but not used in the 50-50 plan. He pointed out
that the governor has proposed a $58 nillion draw from the
Al aska Hi gher Education Investnment Fund for the current year. He
detailed that a one-tine wthdrawal from the Power Cost
Equal i zation (PCE) fund of $300 nmillion is contenplated for
FY2018 as wel | .

CHAI R DUNLEAVY explained that the PCE withdrawal is from the
endownent and does not curtail or negatively inpact the services
del i vered under the PCE program

MR, GEORCGE continued to address the use of savings accounts and
noted that the Earnings Reserve Account's (ERA) draw is the 50-
50 draw previously noted in the presentation. He detailed that
the ERA's balance is $8.35 billion for the end of FY2017.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked that M. George address the balances for
each of the savings accounts over tine.

4:47: 08 PM

MR. GEORCE detailed the forecasted ending balances for the CBR
as foll ows:

 FY2017: $4.375 billion,
« FY2018: $4.324 billion,

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 23, 2017



e FY2019: $4.149 billion,
e FY2020: $4.367 billion,
e FY2021: $4.974 billion,
e FY2022: $5.754 billion,
e FY2023: $6.609 billion,
e FY2024: $7.551 billion,
e FY2025: $8.648 billion,
« FY2026: $9.851 billion,
e FY2027: $11.111 billion.

MR CEORGE detailed that the ending balances included
wi t hdrawal s, settlenents, and earnings of 2.89 percent. He noted
wi t hdrawal s and deposits into the CBR as foll ows:

e FY2017: $2,907.2 nmillion withdrawal,
e FY2018: $270.5 million w thdrawal,
« FY2019: $390.6 million w thdrawal,
* FY2020: $3.1 million wthdrawal,
 FY2021: $368.4 mllion deposit,
 FY2022: $520.1 million deposit,

* FY2023: $570.2 million deposit,

e FY2024: $631.7 mllion deposit,
 FY2025: $755.5 million deposit,

« FY2026: $828.0 million deposit,
 FY2027: $849.0 million deposit.

OO UI NN P

4:48: 35 PM

He revisited savings and addressed the Alaska Housing Capital
Corporation (AHCC) noney where $27.1 million is used in the
FY2018 budget. He specified that the community sharing and
comunity assistance is not touched. He pointed out that when
using the PCE, sone of the excess revenues from PCE are used for
comuni ty assi st ance.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked that that the withdrawals from the PCE
account be clarified.

4:49: 20 PM

ALEXI PAINTER, Fiscal Analyst, Alaska D vision of Legislative
Finance, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska, explained
that SB 196, which passed the previous year, allows the PCE
Fund's excess earnings to be used for other progranms such as
community assistance and rural energy projects. He specified
that up to $30 nmillion of earnings beyond what is needed for the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- February 23, 2017



PCE program can be used for comrunity assistance, so reducing
the capitalization of the PCE Fund by w thdrawing noney woul d
i npact community assistance. He detailed that in FY2017 a
portion of the conmmunity assistance program was paid for wth
PCE fundi ng. He disclosed that the Legislative Finance
Division's nodeling assunmes that about half of the comrunity
assistance will be for going forward.

SENATOR COGHI LL recalled that SB 196 had a "prioritization,"
where PCE is the first thing being paid and then excess allows
it to go to comunity assistance and one other after that. He
asked at what |evel does the expected earnings dimnish if the
$300 mllion drawdown occurs on the PCE Fund's $900 nillion
account .

MR. PAINTER replied that one-third of the PCE Fund is reduced so
one-third less earnings would occur. He forecasted that a 6-
percent return assunption would equate to $57 mllion per year
in earnings that would drop down to $40 mllion which is roughly
the cost of the PCE program so there really wouldn't be any
excess earnings if $300 million was taken out of the PCE Fund.

4:51:35 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL commented that the $300 million withdrawal from
t he PCE account is a huge chunk and a probl em com ng forward.

SENATOR W LSON asked if the Revenue Sharing/ Conmunity Assistance
program s bal ance is approximately $90 mllion.

MR PAINTER replied that the fund's balance is $90 nmllion and
one-third of that is paid out each year, approximately $30
mllion is annually paid out.

MR, GEORGE addressed UG- reductions as foll ows:

e FY2018: $318 million or 6.9 percent UG- reduction which is
a 3.2 percent reduction in state services.

« FY2019: $319 mllion or 7.4 percent UGF reduction which is
a 3.3 percent reduction in state services.

« FY2020: $320 mllion or 8.0 percent UGF reduction which is
a 3.4 percent reduction in state services.

« FY2021: $200 mllion or 5.8 percent UGF reduction which is
a 2.3 percent reduction in state services.

4:53:30 PM

He addressed the ERA bal ances based in mllions of dollars as
foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- February 23, 2017



* FY2017:

Starting Bal ance: $8,345.0

Di vidend Transfer: $696.0

Ear ni ngs Reserve Draw

Statutory Net |ncome: $2,733.0
Endi ng Cor pus Bal ance: $39, 726.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $55, 756.0
* FY2018:

Starting Bal ance: $10, 383.0

Di vi dend Transfer: $2,227.5

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,544.5
Statutory Net |ncome: $3,342.0
Endi ng Cor pus Bal ance: $40,025.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $56, 126.0
* FY2019:

Starting Bal ance: $9,953.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,526.5

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,526.5
Statutory Net Incone: $3,356.0
Endi ng Cor pus Bal ance: $40, 354.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $57,310.0
* FY2020:

Starting Bal ance: $10, 256.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,580.0

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,580.0
Statutory Net Incone: $3,418.0
Endi ng Corpus Bal ance: $40,696.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $58,482.0
* FY2021:

Starting Bal ance: $10,514.0

Di vi dend Transfer: $1,714.5

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,714.0
Statutory Net Incone: $3,477.0
Endi ng Corpus Bal ance: $41,053.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $59,484.0
« FY2022:

Starting Bal ance: $10,562.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,797.5

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,797.5
Statutory Net Incone: $3,525.0
Endi ng Corpus Bal ance: $41,414.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $60,391.0
* FY2023:

VVVVVY VVVVVY VVVVVY VVVVVY VVVVVY

VVVYVVY

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 23, 2017



Starting Bal ance: $10,492.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,821.0

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,821.0
Statutory Net Incone: $3,565.0
Endi ng Cor pus Bal ance: $41,778.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $61, 305.0
« FY2024:

Starting Bal ance: $10,415.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,847.0

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,847.0
Statutory Net Incone: $3,606.0
Endi ng Corpus Bal ance: $42,143.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $62,219.0
* FY2025:

Starting Bal ance: $10, 327.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,871.0

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,871.0
Statutory Net Incone: $3,646.0
Endi ng Corpus Bal ance: $42,514.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $63,140.0
* FY2026:

Starting Bal ance: $10,231.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,893.0

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,893.0
Statutory Net Incone: $3,686.0
Endi ng Corpus Bal ance: $42,844.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $64, 066.0
« FY2027:

Starting Bal ance: $10,131.0

Di vidend Transfer: $1,914.0

Earni ngs Reserve Draw. $1,914.0
Statutory Net Incone: $3,726.0
Endi ng Corpus Bal ance: $43,250.0
Endi ng Total Fund Val ue: $64,538.0

VVYVVVY VVVVVY VVVVVY VVVVVY

VVVYVYVVY

MR. CGEORCE detailed that in FY2018 the dividend transfer is
$2.23 billion to reflect the presunption that the rest of the
2016 dividend in paid out, resulting in an additional $683
million built into the FY2018 dividend transfer. He pointed out
that inflation proofing is not addressed in the plan. He added
that the dividend transfer and the earnings reserve draw are
equal because the plan calls for a 50-50 usage. He noted that by
FY2017 the nodeling projects the ERA to maintain around $10
billion, the ending corpus balance grows from $39.7 billion to
$43.3 billion, and the ending total fund value increases to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- February 23, 2017



$64.5 billion. He specified that there are no changes to the
statutory-dividend formula so legislation is not required.

4:55: 07 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the statutory net inconme nodeling is
based on an average of what the whole fund has earned, a
conbi nation of the ERA and the fund, or is it just the ERA

MR. GEORGE replied that M. Painter will provide an answer. He
noted that the nunbers for the nodeling is provided by the
Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation with an assumed return of 6.95
percent. He added that he assuned the permanent fund' s corpus
and ERA are invested together.

SENATOR COGHI LL explained that the reason for his question is
due to a previous presentation by the Chief Executive Oficer of
the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation where fluidity was
addressed for inflation proofing and investnents from the ERA
He inquired if the projected $10 billion in the ERA is enough
for investnent flexibility in addition to his previous question
on the whol e fund.

MR. PAINTER asked Senator Coghill if he is asking what is
statutory net incone.

SENATOR COGHI LL answer ed yes.

4:57:01 PM
MR. PAI NTER expl ai ned that the total return as foll ows:

The total return is basically the difference between
where you start at the beginning of the year to where
your investnments end up.

The statutory net income is how noney goes from the
principal to the earnings reserve and that is the
realized earnings of the fund, so if the fund holds a
stock and it increases in value and they continue to
hold it at the end of the year, that gain is not
realized, so that noney would not nove into the ERA
If a stock gained and then they sold it, the
difference would be a realized gain that would be a
part of the ERA. For the real estate portfolio, the
rent they may receive on an asset, that would be
realized gains, but the increase of value of that
asset if they continue to hold it would not be.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 23, 2017



There are two projections that | have, 6.95-percent
t ot al return and then they project 6.24-percent
realized return each year; there was sone discussion
of that in the House Finance Commttee just now and
again in the Senate Finance Commttee tonorrow about
that assunption of realized versus unrealized gains

Qur nodel of the Legislative Finance Division uses a
nore conservative figure for the anobunt realized then
t he Al aska Permanent Fund Corporati on.

SENATOR COGHI LL commented that whenever net incone is addressed
he tries to know where the line is drawn. He renmarked that the
plan's incone stream |ooks to be over what generally has been
put into inflation proofing, now the question is a matter of the
flexibility.

4:59: 20 PM
MR. GEORGE noted that the Legislative Finance Division wll
provide the committee with their conprehensive nodeling of the
50-50 pl an.

MR. PAINTER expl ained that his overview references a status quo
scenario which is no action. He added that his overview wll
al so reference the permanent fund, flat budget, and the three
bills in conjunction with Chair Dunl eavy's 50-50 plan.

He explained that in the status quo scenario, the Legislative
Finance Division starts with a conservative realized figure,
57.25 percent of incone realized, about 4.00 percent a year
rather than the permanent fund's 6.24 percent. He detailed that
with the status quo deficits continue and unplanned draws
beginning in FY2019 will cause reserves to run out by the end of
FY2026.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if status quo neans the state continues to
spend and draw at its current |evels.

MR. PAINTER answered correct and added that statutory inflation-
proofing would continue as well.

He addressed the governor's plan and noted that the plan is
basically the sanme as what the Senate passed the previous year

SB 28. He detailed that the governor's plan has a 5.25-percent
percentage of market value (POW) draw with a dividend that is
based on 20 percent of the draw plus 20 percent of UGF
royalties. He noted that there is a dividend floor of $1,000 for
the first two years and a dividend fornula after that. He said

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- February 23, 2017



the effect of the governor's plan is that it does not bal ance
t he budget for several years, but reserves would be stabilized.
He pointed out that the 5.25-percent POW draw becones an
effective draw of 4.7-percent because fund-bal ance averages from
previ ous years are used.

5:04: 53 PM

ROB CARPENTER, Fiscal Analyst, Alaska Division of Legislative
Fi nance, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska, explained
that the fornula used after the guaranteed $1, 000 dividend for 2
years will distribute dividends beyond the initial 2 years at
approximately the $1,000 | evel as well.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how much the governnent takes from the
governor's pl an.

MR. CARPENTER replied that the amount for the general fund would
start out at $1.8 billion and rise fromthere as the fund val ue
grows. He added that the nodeling assunmes a flat budget with no
budget cuts and no taxes. He pointed out that the governor has a
notor-fuel tax increase that is not shown in the nodeling.

He addressed HB 115 and noted that the plan does have an incone
tax. He detailed that HB 115 has a 4.75 percent POW draw and an
income tax equal to 15 percent of federal incone taxes paid. He
added that the plan pays one-third of the POW draw to the
di vidend. He noted that the dividend draw starts out higher than
the governor's plan at $1,100 and rises from there. He pointed
out that the plan closes the deficit earlier by FY2023 wth
rising reserves. He added that the plan's 4.75 percent POW
payout |evels out to about a 4.17-percent effective payout over
time. He said the fund nore than keeps up with inflation and
noted that in FY2026 the fund would be 109 percent of the real
val ue.

5:06:47 PM

MR. GEORGE pointed out that when the conbined value of the ERA
and the corpus is noted as keeping pace with inflation, what is
happening is the ERA is growing, but the corpus is not because
there are no inflationary deposits into the corpus. He expl ai ned
that the entire ERA is available for appropriation today in its
entirety, should that happen the fund would not have kept up
with inflation.

MR. PAINTER said inflation proofing in the noted plans do not

use the traditional inflation-proofing mechanism He explained
that the traditional method uses the actual inflation anount

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- February 23, 2017



that happened in that year and then puts that amount back into
the principal, also known as a "spillover" nmethod. He detailed
that if the ERA's balance exceeds four-times the draw, the
anount over the four-tines draw would go to the princi pal

MR. PAI NTER expl ai ned that SB 21, Senator Stedman's bill, has a
4.5-percent POW draw with 50 percent going to dividends. He
noted that dividends in SB 21 start out at $1,600 and rise from
there, above the status quo line. He disclosed that SB 21 does
not conpletely close the budget deficit, so the CBR would be
exhausted in FY2021 and then there would be unplanned draws from
the ERA unless there are additional actions taken; as a result,
SB 21 does not hold the real value as nuch because there are
unpl anned draws. He noted that if there were reductions to the
budget or other taxes to offset that because of the |ower draw,
a higher real value would result. He added that the effective
draws al so show as very high in SB 21 because of the unpl anned
dr aws.

5:08: 52 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that what is inportant to know about SB 21
is the bill is a POW 50-50 approach where the governnent's take
and the dividend are equal .

MR.  PAINTER explained that Chair Dunleavy's 50-50 plan as
outlined uses incone rather than a POW draw is essentially the
difference with SB 21. He said the 50-50 plan's dividend is very
close to the status quo scenario. He noted that the 50-50 plan
looks a little different from the earlier presentation because
the Legislative Finance Division's nodeling uses a nore
conservative realized figure and no budget cuts. He said wthout
t he budget cuts, the reserves would be declining, the CBR would

still dimnish, and the plan would just barely keep pace wth
inflation. He detailed that the 50-50's plan's draws to the
general fund would begin at $1.5 billion.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY stated that M. Painter's description of the 50-
50 plan is different fromhis office's explanation.

5:10: 08 PM

MR. PAINTER replied correct. He addressed budget cuts and noted
that the cuts are an inportant part of the 50-50 plan. He
explained that the Legislative Finance Division incorporated
budget cuts into its nodeling at various cunul ative anounts. He
detailed that the follow ng cunulative budget cut anmounts were
used: $300 mllion, $600 million, $900 mllion, and $1.1

SENATE STA COW TTEE -29- February 23, 2017



billion. He referenced nodeling using budget cuts with various
vari abl es and commented as foll ows:

That |ooks nore like the picture you saw, still a
little different because we are wusing this nore
conservative realized figure. So, wunder wusing this
57.25 percent realized, you still close the budget
deficit, you have dividends roughly the sane as status
quo, increasing ERA bal ance, and the CBR hol ds.

So, to get to what you have in front of you, swtch
this higher realized value, this is nore what the
permanent fund is expecting, and the effects of that
is that then you do have increasing CBR balances,
hi gher dividends, and surpluses; however, at that
point you are not nmintaining pace with inflation in
the fund because the real value of the fund would be
declining. So, if you wuse this nore conservative
realized figure then it is keeping pace wth
inflation, but reserves aren't as healthy, if you use
the nore aggressive figure you are not Kkeeping pace
with inflation, but reserves are healthier.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opined that there are tradeoffs in all of the
approaches in terns of dividends, governnent take, and keeping
up with inflation

5:12: 06 PM

MR. PAINTER noted that the sanme budget cuts applied to SB 21
shows very simlar effects where the budget deficit is closed at
roughly the sane tine and has conparabl e dividends. He set forth
that the primary difference between the approaches is going to
be how they perform with nore volatile investnent returns. He
specified that the advantage of the POW approach is that it
provides nore stable amounts for governnent than the other
appr oach.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY addressed Senator Coghill's concern on revenue
sharing and offered that there is flexibility where nore could
be drawn from the CBR or the Al aska higher Education |nvestnent
Fund. He said Senator Coghill's concern probably is the centra

issue for all the plans regarding how nuch should be drawn, how
much should be cut, and should there be revenue enhancenents
fromtaxes.

He said what his office put forward is to show an approach that
mat hematically and nechanically can work with reducti ons because

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 30- February 23, 2017



reductions are the key. He asserted that wthout reductions
there is a case to be made that the state may end up chasing
costs with revenue that may be difficult to get through taxes.
He enphasized that his office wanted to show different
approaches to a sustainable budget in four years, maintain the
di vidend, and keep the cost of governnent | ocked down through an
appropriation limt if people vote in the affirmative. He set
forth that the 50-50 approach can grow the conbined fund
bal ances into the $65 billion range.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY reiterated that there are tradeoffs and the
tradeoff in the 50-50 approach is to avoid taxes by draw ng on
the ERA under the existing statute, budget reductions, and a
judicious use of other savings accounts. He summarized that the
50-50 plan and the Senate Majority approach can address
reductions early on while | essening the need for a tax.

5:15:42 PM

SENATOR COGHILL noted that the ERA could be depleted in an ad
hoc way if the Legislature did not have a systemc way to work
with it. He asserted that Chair Dunleavy has shown that a
system c approach is only true if cutting government is not
started. He concurred that cutting governnent is harder than
going into savings accounts. He said Chair Dunleavy has clearly
shown that the plans could work with some self-discipline.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY commented that the reviewed plans are all
statutory, neaning that they can be changed by the Legislature.
He reiterated that his office wanted to address the thought that
the state cannot get out of its fiscal problem w thout taxes and
a real restructuring of the permanent fund. He reiterated that
budget reductions mnust be contenplated along with the use of
savings. He added that his office has al so denonstrated that the
state's savings can be mamintained and in many cases the savings
gr ow.

5:17:38 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for wunaninous approval that SCR 2, Apri
2017 Sexual Assault Awareness Mnth, be waived from the Senate
State Affairs Standing Committee to the next commttee of
referral. He said seeing no objection, SCR 2 is waived to the
next conmttee of referral.

5:18:13 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Dunleavy adjourned the Senate State Affairs Comrttee at
5:18 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -31- February 23, 2017



